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Geographical Location Shiwal

Khushab (meaning sweet water) is a district of Punjab located
between districts Chakwal, Sargodha, Mianwali, Bhakkar and
Jhang. Khushab is placed amongst agricultural lowland planes,
lakesand hills, River Jhelum runs on the East ofthe Khushab District,

whils canals from River Indus irigate much of its planes.
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Corporate Calendar

Financial Year 2016

Financial Year 2015

First Quarter Results issued on Wednesday, January 28, 2015
Second Quarter Results issued on Wednesday, May 27, 2015
Third Quarter Results issued on Thursday, July 30, 2015

Extra Ordinary General Meeting Friday, July 31, 2015

Annual Results issued on Wednesday, December 23, 2015

47th Annual General Meeting Saturday, January 30, 2016
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Corporate Information

Board of Directors

Mr. Ghias Ul Hasan

Mr. Atif Zaheer Farooqi

Mr. Amjad Bashir Hussain
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Mr. Farhan llyas
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Mr. Farhan llyas

Mr. Ghias UI Hasan
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CPL Nominee

CPL Nominee
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Member
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Mr. Ghias Ul Hasan

Chairman
Member
Member

Company Secretary
Auditors

Mr. Imran liyas

UHY Hassan Maeem & Co.

(Chartered Accountants)

'-.l

Head of Internal Audit

i Y

syed Muhammad Usman Afzaal

Share Registrar
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: !
Corplink (Pvt.) Limited RASE:
Wings Arcade, 1-K Commercial, 1
Model Town, Labons t “
Phone Mo, 042 35916714 i
Fax Mo, 042 35869057

E-mail: shares@corplink.com.pk g

Legal Advisor

Allied Legal Services, Advocates

Registered Office Address
109-A, Street # 3, Cavalry Ground,
Lahore Cantt. Pakistan

Phone No. 042 37175229

Fax No. 042 37175256

E-mail: secretary@jsml.com.pk

Mills
Jauharabad, District Khushab
Phone No. 0454 720063-6

Bankers of the Company
Albarka Bank Pakistan Limited
JS Bank Limited

MCE Islamic Bank Limited
Dubai Islamic Bank Limited
Mational Bank of Pakistan
Habib Bank Limited

Allied Bank Limited

Bskari Bank Limited

Soneri Bank Limited

Faysal Bank Limited

Habib Metropelitan Bank Limited
United Bank Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited

MCE Bank Limited

Company Website
www.isml.com.pk
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Corporate Profile

Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited (formerly Kohincor Sugar Mills
Lkn]:tad} is a Public Limited Company and has a privilege of being

of the pioneer sugar mills of Pakistan. Initially it was setup by
Development Corporation of Pakistan which was later
privatized and was listed al PSX and has been in operation for the
Jast 54-.?@'-5 Furtha* lrl Mﬂmh 2{113 1ha Nﬁw Mhnagament
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Our Products

Sugar

Sugarcane stalks are shredded and squeezed to
exiract it's natural juice, which is boiled until it
thickens and maolasses-rich sugar crystals begin
to settle. The molasses-rich crystals are sent to a
rapidly spinning centrifuge 1o remove molasses
and leave pure naturally white sugar crystals,

Molasses

The most commaon forms of molasses are made
from either sugar Black strap molasses cane or
sugar best juice which is boiled down to a syrup,
Sugar crystals are extracted from the syrup, and
the remalning dark liquidis molasses.

Bagasse

Sugarcane is a tree-free renewable resource,
Historically, bagasse waste has been burned in
the fields, and thereby creafing poliution. Now,
bagasse is used to manufacturer eco friendly food
sarvice products replacing traditional paper,
plastics and styrofoam products. Products
manufactured from bagasse require less energy
than plastics. By adopting bagasse products, yvou
indirectly help in reducing the pollution and energy
consumption,

Mud

Sugarcane press mud Is produced in sugarcane
mills and its distibution follows that of cane sugar
production,
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Corporate Strategy

We, at Jauharabad Sugar Mills, manufacture and market consistently high
quality standards, according to the requirements of the Consumers. Our
strateqyistogrow ourmainbusinessline andtoselup activities, based on
alied products, enablingus to stay ahead of competition, by adopting
latest technology with efficient operations, progressive teamwork in an
environment of good governance and professionalism, We undertake and
support community development and welfare projects as a responsible
member of the community and are committed to serve the interast of our
stakeholders while contributing towards the prosperity of the people of
this country,

Admissible Business Activities

The Company is established with the purpose to set up, run and maintain
works and factories tomanufacture, iImprove, treat, process and to sell
sugar produced from sugarcane, sugar beet, raw sugar, other
vegetableand todealin allits activities suchastogrow sugarcane, sugar
beet, setting up plant and equipment to produce ethanol from
molasses, setting up steelre-melting unit andtodoall other matters
related to its byproducts. To set-up powerplants to produca power for
its own use and to sall the same fo the MNational Grid or in the market
to praspective buyer,
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Statement of Ethics &
Business Practices

The following prnciples constitute the code of conduct which all
Directors and employeses of Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited are
required to apply in their daily work and observe the codes of conduct of
the Company's business, While the Company will ensure that all
employees are fully aware of these pnnciples, it is the respansibility of

gach employes to

implemant the Company's policies, any

contraventions against it will be viewed as misconduct towards the
code,

The code emphasizes the need for a high standard of honesty and
integrity which are vital for the success of any business.

Ethical Principles:

i 1

Directors and employaes are expected not to engage in any activity
which can cause conflict between their personal interest and the
interest of the Company such as interest in an organization
supplying goods/services to the Company or purchasing its
products. In case a relationship with such an organization exists,
the same must be disclosed to the Management.

Dealings with third parties which include Government officials,
suppliers, buyers, agents and consultants must always ensure that
the integrity and reputation of the Company are not in any way
compromised,

Directors and employees are not allowed to accept any favours or
kickbacks from any organzation dealing with the Company.

Directors and employees are not permitted to divulge any
confidential information relating to the Company to any
unauthorized person, nor should they, while communicating publicly
on matters that involve the Company's business, presume to speak
for the Company unless they are certain that the views that they
express are those of the Company and it is the Company's desire
that such views be publicly disseminated.

All employees share a responsibility for the Company’s good public
relations particularly at the community level. Their readiness to help
with religious, charitable, educational and civic activities is
accordingly encouraged provided it does not create an obligation
that interferes with their commitment to the Company's best
interests.

The Company has strong commitment to the health and safety of its
employees and preservation of the environment and the Company
will persevere towards achieving continuous improvement of its
Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) performance by reducing
potential hazards, preventing pollution and improving awareness.
Employees are required to operate the Company's faciliies and
processes keeping this commitment in view.,

Commitment and team work are key elements to ensure that the
Company's work is carried out effectively and efficiently. Also all
employees will be equally respected and actions such as sexual
harassment and disparaging remarks based on gender, religion,
race or sethnicity will be avoided.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE iz hereby given that the Forty Eighth Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Jauharabad Sugar Mills
Limited (the "Company”) will be held on Tuesday, January 31, 2017 at 11:30 a.rm., at its Registered Office 109-A, Strest
# 3, Cavalry Ground, Lahore Cantt., to transact the following business:

Toconfirm the minutes of the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on November 30, 2016,

To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended September 30,

To consider and approve, as recommended by the Board of Directors, the payment of cash dividend for the year

Ordinary Business
1.
2
2016 together with Directors' and Auditors' Reporis thereon,
3.
ended September 30, 2016 @ 10% i.e. Re.1/- per ordinary share.
4,  Toappoint Auditors and to fix their remuneration,
5.  Anyaotherbusiness with the permission of the chair,

Lahore: January OF, 2017

MOTE:

1,

s

4,

The share transfer books of the Company will remain
closed from Tuesday, January 24, 2017 o Tuesday,
January 31, 2017 (both days inclusive). Transfer
recaived in order by the Company’s Share Registrar,
WM/s Corplink (Private) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K
Commercial, Modsl Town, Lahore up o the close of
business on Monday, January 23, 2017 will be treated
in time for entittement to attend the Annual General
Meeting.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the mesating
may appaoint another member as his/her proxy 1o
attend and viote on hisher behalf, In case of corporate
antity, the Board of Directors Resolution/Fower of
Attormey with specimen signature of the representative
shall be submitted along with Proxy Form of the
Company, Proxies, in order to be affective, must be
received al the registered office of the Company 48
hours before the time of holding of the meeting.

Those membears wiho have deposited their shares with
the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
(COC) are requested to bring their original CNIC,
Account and Participation's Mumbers. Such members
will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in
the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistarn's Circular No. 1 dated January 26, 2000.

The members should guote their folic number in all
corespondence with the Company and at the time of

By order of the Board

(im YAS)
Compan retary

attending the Annual General Meeting,

Members are requested to notify the change of their
registered addresses, Zakat Declaration, and tax
exemnption status, if any, duly accompanied with its
valid certificates, immediately to Company's
Independent Share Registrar.

According to SECP directives, dividend warrantis)
must bear the CMNIC number of the registered
shareholder. Therafore, the members who hawve not yet
submitted photocopy of their valid computerized
naticnal identity cards to the Company are requested
to send the sarme at the office of Independant Share
Reagistrar of the Company.

As directed by the SECP vide Circulars No. 18 of 2012
dated June 5, 2012, we give the opportunity to those
shareholders who have not provided dividend
mandate information, to authorize the Company to
directly credit the cash dividend, if any, declars by the
compary in future, in their respective bank account
instead of issuing a dividend warrant. The dividend
mandate information may be provided, in case of book
entry securities in CDS, to respective COS participants
and in case of physical shares, to Company's
Independent Share Registrar. Copy of dividend
mandate formm may be downloaded from Company's
wiebsite www jsml.com.pk

The current withholding tax rates on dividend
payments as prescribed by the Income Tax Ordinance,
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10,

11

2001 (the Ordinance) are 12.5% for Filers and 209% for
Mon-Filers. To enable the Company to make tax
deduction on the amount of Cash Dividend @ 12.50%
instead of 20%, all the shareholders whose names ara
not entered into the Active Tax-payers List (ATL)
avallable on the website of the Federal Board of
Revenue, are advised to make sure that their names
are entered into ATL before the date of issuance of
Cividend \Warrants, otherwise they shall be treated as
Mon-Filers (despite the fact that they are filers of
income tax return) and tax on their Cash Dividend will
be deducted @ 20%,,

The Corporate Shareholders having CDC account are
required to have their National Tax Mumber (NTH)
updated with their respective participants, whereas
corporate physical shareholders should send a copy of
their NTN certificates to the Company or Company's
Indepenclent Share Registrar.

As per FBR's clarification, the valid Exemplion
Certificate under Section 158 of the Ordinance is
mandatory to claim exemption of withholding tax
under Clause 478 of Par-IV of Second Schedule 1o
the Ordinance. Those who fall in the category
mentioned in above Clause must provide wvalid Tax
Exemption Cerificate to our Company's Independent
Shares Registrar; otherwise tax will be deducted on
dividend amount as per prescribed rates.

The FBR has clarified that shareholders' accounts

Jauaharabad Sugar Mills Limited
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jointly hedd by Filars and Nan-Filers shall be dealt with
separately and in such particular situation, each
account holder is to be treated as either a Filer or a
Non-Filer and tax will be deducted according to his
shareholding. If the share is not ascertainable then
each account holder will be assumed to hold egual
proporion of shares and the deduction will be made
accordingly. Therefore, in order to aveid deduction of
tax at a higher rate, the joint acgcount holders are
requested to provide the below details of their
shareholding to the Share RBegistrar of the Company
latast by the AGM date.

Foln/COC
Booant Mo

arme al

CHIC

Sharehoiding

Tortal
Shanas

Princiald ol
Snarsnoldar

12. The financial statements of the Company for the year

ended 30 September 2016 along with Auditors and
Directors Report thereon have been placed on the
Company's website: www.jsml.com.pk

21
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Directors’ Report to the Shareholders

The Directors of Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited (the
Company) are pleased to present the Forty Eighth
Annual Report together with audited financial
statements and Auditors’ report thereon for the year
ended September 30, 2016

Overview

Sugar indusiry, being second largest agro based
industry, plays a wital rele in creating healthy economic
activitios in the country. In this crop year Sugarcans, the
basic raw material, has been grown on approximatealy
1.13 million hectares of land [CY15: 1.113 million
hectares] resulting in an estimated production of 65.45
million tong [CY15: 62,79 milion tons], an increase of
4.2% YOY bases. Lower prices for the competitive
crops have encouraged the farmer to shift to sugarcane
where there is a comparative higher support prices fixed
by provincial governments. Improvements in Agro
Technology and effective Pest control managemeant has
resulted in a 2.6% increase in per hectare vield |.e. to

340,519 tons [FY15: 252,995 tons] of sugarcane during
the current year. The Company has sold 33,205 tons
[Fy15: 24,492 tons] of white refined sugar including
exports of 15,905 tons [FY15; Nil] to Afghanistan.

Future Prospects
The management has honored all ts commitments well
before time and endeavors to further strengthen

Sugarcane Crushed

450,000
400,000
350,000
00,000
250,000

200,000 —p T T
FY 2011 FY a2 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2018

Operating Performance

Below is the summary of operating results for the crushing season 2015-16 as compared to last crushing
SBas0.

Description Unit FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15 YOY Change
Sugarcane Crushed M. Tons 340,519 252,985 34.60%
Sugar Produced M. Tons 33,205 24,492 35.57%
Sugar Recovery Percentage 9.75 9.68 0.72%
Sugar Sold Local M. Tons 17,300 24,492 (29.36%)
Sugar Sold Export M. Tons 15,805 - 100%
Sugar Sold Total M. Tons 33,205 24,492 35.57%
Molasses Produced M. Tons 15,990 11,292 41.80%
Molasses Recovery Percentage 4.70 4.48 5.38%

"y

57.88 tons per hectare [CY15: 56.41 tons per hectare],
Farmers are shifting to better cane varieties with higher
sugar content and sugar recovery ratas hava continued
to improve 1o 9.8 percent [CY15: 8.7 percent]. Sugar
production for crushing season 2015-16 was 5.08
million tons, slightly down from previous year, To off load
carny-over stocks from preceding vears, 275,000 tons
of sugar was exported during the first three months of
2016 with the help of an export subsidy of Rs. 13,000
par ton, under the export guota for 500,000 tons
permitted by the Government of Pakistan,

The Company has produced 33,205 tons [FY15:
24,492 tons] of white refined sugar at improved recovery
rate of 9.75 percent [FY15: 9.68 percent] by crushing

financial position of the Compariy in coming years, With
this vision project for co-generation has already been
initiatad that is expected to come into production by
next crushing season. The Company’s strong and delbt
free financial position and free cash flow generating

Sugar Produced

34,000
a2 000
30,000
28,000
26,000
24,000
22,000
20,000
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ability would continue to support investments in
envisaged projects that shall bring in further operational
efficiencies and enhance shareholders’ valua in future.

Auditors' Report

The financial statements of the Company have been
audited without qualification by the auditor and s
authorized forissue to its shareholders,

Financial Position

The financial results of the Company for the year Uunder review are summarized as following.

Description FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15 ¥YOY Change
Met Sales 2,086,363 1,455,10 444%
Cost of Sales 1,888,218 1,349,775 A0%
Gross Profit 208,144 106,330 08%
Selling, Distribution & Admin Expenses 01,444 75,808 21%
Ciperating Profit 116,70 1205212 94%
Ctherlncome 18,961 28,840 (345%5)
Finance Cost 53,626 51,010 5%
Profit Before Taxation B2,036 7,15110 47 %%
Taxation 23,961 (2,031) (1,280%)
Profit After Taxation 105,997 5 1962%
Eaming Per Share (Rs./Share) a.72 0.47 1968%

Tha Company has exported considerable amounts of its produced sugar that has resulted in 1.44 times growth in sales
volume as comparad to the last year's pedormance. Corresponding expenses have been abridged by optimum utilization
of available resources resulting in 9.93% of gross profits [FY15: 7.249%], 5.54% operating profits [FY15: 2.03%] and 5.06%
profit after taxation [FY15; 0.35%)]. Total comprehensive income for the perod is Rs. 132.354 million [FY15: Rs. 22.810
million]. Financial performance has resulted in a profit of Rs. 9,72 per share, as compared to EFS of Rs. 0.47, earned in last
financial year. This financial growth is mainly attributable to better sugar recovery, export of sugar under government
policies, improverment in sugar prices and revenue contribution from byproducts,

Profitability

B GP Ratio
NP Ratlo

FY 201 FY 2042 FY 2013 FY 2044 FY 2015 FY 2016

Mo material changes and commitment affecting the
financial position of your company have occurred
between the end of the financial year 1o which these
financial staterments relate and date of director's report.

Auditors

The present extarnal auditors of the Company M/s, UHY
Hazsan Masem & Co., Chartered Accountants audited
the financial statements of the Company and have
issuad a raport to the members. The auditors will retire at

the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting. Being
eligible, they have offered themselves for re-appointment.
The Board has recommendead the appointment of M/s
UHY Hassan Masem & Co., Chartered Accountants as
auditors for the ensuing year, as suggested by the Audit
Committes, subject to the approval of the members in the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Appropriations

The Board of Directors of your company is pleased to
proposa a 10% final cash dividend of Re.1/- per ordinary
share, out of current year profits, for the Financial Year
ended September 20, 2016,

Compliance with the

Code of Corporate Governance

The management is fully aware of the Company's
obligations for compliance with the Code of Corporate
Governance (the Code) as incorporated in the Listing
Regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange and steps are
being taken for its effective implementation.

S



The various statements, as required by the Code, are given
below:

* Presentation of Financial Statements
The financial statements, prepared by the management
of the Company, fairly present its state of affairs, the
results of its operations, cash flow and changes in
eLity.

* Books of Account
The Company has maintained proper books of account
as required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984,

* Accounting Policies
Appropriate accounting policies have baen consistently
applied in preparation of financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgments.

= International Accounting Standards
International Financial Reporting Standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of the financial statements to ensure the
true and fair view of the Company's financial position.

= Internal Control System
The system of internal control is sound in design and
has been effectively implemented and is being
mcnitored continuously. The process of review will
continua by the audit committes to monitor the effective
implementation and future improvemant in controls,

* Going Concern
Thera are no significant doubts upon the Company's
ability to continue as a going concearn,

* Financial Highlights
Key operating and financial data for tha last six vears is
included in this report.

* Statement on Value of Staff Retirement Funds
The fair value of investments of provident fund based on
its unaudited accounts as of September 30, 2016is Rs.
20.875 million [FY15: Rs, 17.64 million].

There has been no material departure from the Best
Practices of Corporate Governanca, as detailed in the
Listing Regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange wherever
applicable to the Company for the year ended September
30, 20186,

Business Ethics and Anti-Corruption Measures

The Company, through its training, management
standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined
and constructive control environment in which all
employees understand their roles and obligations.
Employess are encouraged to report any deal that may be

Jauaharabad Sugar Mills Limited
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supported by suspicious transactions. No employee is
allowed to run a parallel business.

Vision, Mission and Overall Corporate Strategy

The Board of Directors has carafully reviewed and
approved the vision, mission and overal corporate
strategy of your Company and believes that it
comprehensively states the ideology with which
Jauharabad Sugar Mill was incorporated. We ensure that
our vision and mission sets the direction for our overall
corporate strategy and our future journey in everything we
do at all levels. The entire organization is connected and
driven by this purposa and it serves as the main decision
making criterion in our day to day business,

Board Structure and Its Committees

Board of Directors Meetings

During the financial year 2015-16, four Meetings of the
Board of Directors were held. The attendance by each
Director was as under:

(8. Name Status No.of
Mestings Attended
1 M. Ghias LIIHasan ChistEsacutiva/Exacutive Direclor 444
2 . Atif Zaheer Fanoogi Indepandent Directar 144
3 M. Amjad Bashir Hussan.  Executive Diractor 404
4 . Shahruki Taimour Execyutive Dirsctar 34
h . Bamran Zshoar Exacutive Dirsctar 244
(i} Mr. Farhan yas HMon-Executielirector 244
7 M. Amjad Mehmood Mon-Exscutive Director 204
] Mr. Muhammad Aamir Beg  independent Director 204
L | Mr. Jamal Abmed Mon-Exacutive Dirscior 24 y

There casual vacancies in the Board of Director during the
year were duly filed in by the Company before the expiry of
80 days period. The Diractors who could not attend the
Board Mesting and requested for leave were duly granted
leave for absence from the Meeting by the Board in
accordance with the law.

Audit Committee

The Board of Directors in compliance to the Code of
Corporate Governance has established an Audit
Committee. During the financial year 2015-16, four
Meetings of the Audit Committese were held, The
atiendance by each member was as under,

8r.  MName Status Na, of

Meetings Attended
1 N Armad Bashr Chaimman [ Exscutive Dieclor Asd
2 N, Farhan llyas hamioer / Man-Exscutis Director A4
| W Ghias-ul-Hasan Mamibar / Exaculive Director 444

Terms of Reference for Audit Committee
The main term of reference of the Audit Committes of the
Company includes the following:

a. Detarmination of appropriate measures to safeguard
the listed company’s assets;
b. Review of guarterty, hali-yearly and annual financial
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statements of the listed company, prior to their approval
by the Board of Directors, focusing on;

majar judgmental areas;

significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

the going concern assumption;

any changes in accounting policies and practices;
compliance with applicable accounting standards;
compliance withlisting requiations and other
statutory and regulatory requirements; and

» Significant related party transactions;

. Review of preliminary announcameants of results prior 1o

publication;

. Facilitating the external audit and discussion with

external auditors of major obsarvations arising from
interim and final audits and any matter that the auditors
may wish to highlight;

. Review of management letter issued by external

auditors and management’s response thereto;
Ensuring coordination between the internal and
external auditors of the listed company;

. Review of the scope and extent of internal audit and

ensuring that the internal audit function has adequate
resources and i appropriately placed within the listed
company;

. Consideration of major findings of internal investigations

of activities characterized by fraud, corruption and
abuse of power and management's response therato,
Ascertaining that the internal audit control systems
including financial and operational controls, accounting
systems for timely and appropriate recording of
purchases and sales, receipt and payments, assets
and liabilities and the reporting structure are adequate
and effective;

Review of the listed company’s statement on internal
control systems prior to endorsement by the Board of
Directors and internal audit reports;

. Instituting special projects, value for money studies or

other investigations on any matter specified by the
Board of Directors, in consultation with the CEC and to
consider remittance of any matter to the extarnal
auditors or toany other axternal body,

Determination of compliance with relevant statutory
requirements;

Monitoring compliance with the best practices of
corporate governance and identification of significant
violations thereof; and

. Consideration of any other issue or matter as may be

assigned by the Board of Directors,

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

The Board of Directors in compliance to the Code of
Corporate Governance has established an HR & R
Committee. During the financial year 2015-18, one
Meeting of the HR & R Committee was held. The
attendance by sach member was as under:

Mo af

W

Br. Namae Etatus

Meetings Attended
1 Mr Farhanllas Chairman / Non-Bxecutive Director 11
2 Mr Jamal Ahmed Memibar ¢ Nom-Exeoutive Director 11
3 M Ghas-LU-Hasan Memiber  Executive Direcior 11

Terms of Reference for HR&R Committee
Tha Main term of reference of the HR&R Committes of
the Company includes the following:

The Committes shall be responsible to;

l.  Recommending human resource management
policies to the Board,

Il. Recommending to the board the selection,
evaluation, compensation (including retirement
benefits) and succeassion planning of the CEC;

ll. Recommending to the board the selection,
evaluation, compensation (including retirement
benefits) of COO, CFO, Company Secretary and
Head of Internal Audit;

. Consideration and approval on recommendations
of CEQ on such matters for key management
positions who report directly to CEC or COC.

a. The remuneration of the executive and non-
executive Director shall not fall within the preview of
the HR & R Committas,

b. Recommendations in respect of compensation
including performance incentive will ensure that:

* The Company is able to recruit, motivate and
restain persons of high ability, caliber and intagrity,

* The packages are consistent with what is normal
in the industry and / or specific job wise, as
determined through surveys conducted.,

* |ncentives where applicable are based on criteria
which have been carsfully examined, discussed
and authorized.

€. Selaction recommendation should ensure that the
Company has formal selection procedurs which
provides for:

* A description of the position that requires to be
filled with a profile of ideal candidate;

» Selection boards for various levels of recruitment.

d. Performance evaluation should:

* Be based on procedures formally specified and
which override individual likes and dislikes;

* Provide for discussion of the Annual Performance
Report with each manager concemed,

. The Committes will also;
= Review and approve compensation payable 1o

senior management for any loss or on
termination of services to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is
otherwise fair,

* Review and advice on the training, development
and succession planning for the senior




managemeant with reference to the Board's
corporate goals and objactives,

* Devise a procedure for the approval of HR related
policies of the Company.

s Review for time to time as appropriate these
Terms of Reference and the effectiveness of the
Committee and recommend to the Board any
necessary changas.

Qualification of CFO and

Head of Internal Audit

The Chiet Financial Officer and the Head of Internal Audit
possess the requisite qualifications and experience as
prescribedin the Code of Corporate Governanca,

Formal Orientation Training

Program For Directors

The Company is interested for the profassional
development of its Board members, Thereto the Board
shall shortly arrange the Directors' Certification Training
Program from recognized institutes of Pakistan
approved by SECP for Three mambers at least. Training
program for the remaining directors shall be arranged
after the forthcoming election of directors.

Election of Directors

Az par corporate calendar the members of the
Company, in the Extra Ordinary General Mesting, shall
elect the directors on the Board of the Company, for the
next term of three years, inforthcaming financial year.

Transaction/Trading In Company’s Shares

The Board has reviewed the threshold for disclosure on
interest by executives hofding of Company's shares
which include CEQ, CFO, Head of Internal Audit and
Company Secretary. However, during the financial year,
none of the Directors, CEQ, CFO, Head of Internal Audit
and Company Secretary (including their spouses and
rmingr children) traded in the shares of the Company.

Pattern of Shareholding

Pattern of Shareholding of the Company in accordance
with the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and Code of
Corporate Governance as at September 30, 2016 is
annexed.

Safety and Environments

The Company strictly complies with the standards of the
safety rules and regulations. It also follows
environmental friendly policies. Occupational health,
safety and environmental policy is annexed and form a
part of this report.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Disclosure as raguired by the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility) General Order, 2009 is annexed
and form a part of this repart,
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Financing Arrangements
The Company is current with its financial cbligations and
enjoys close cordial relationship with all the financial
institutions it is dealing with. Your company has intact
working capital lines support smooth operations for
forthocoming crushing season and long tarm faciities to
finance the expansion projects.

Contribution To Mational Exchequer

During the year, the Company has contributed an
amount of Rs. 108167 million toward national
exchequer in shape of taxes, duties, cess etc. The
Company has also contributed through eaming of
valuable foreign exchangs amounting to USE 7.157
million through export of refine sugar,

Outstanding Statutory Dues

The outstanding statutory dues on the account of taxes,
duties and charges are disclosed on the face of balance
sheet and in Mote 22 to the financial statements. Thare is
no overdus amount on account of taxes and duties,

Communication

Communication with the shareholders is given high
pricrity. Annual, Half Yearly and CQuarterly Accounts are
distributed to them within the time specified in the
Companies Ordinanca, 1984, Every opportunity is given
to the individual shareholders to attend and freely ask
guestions about the Company's operations at the
General Mesting(s).

Management - Employees Relationship

The Board would like to record its appraciation for the
valuable contribution made by all its employeas, The
management is quite confident that these cordial
relations and cooperation will continue in the years to
COme.

Acknowledgment

The Directors of the Company take this opportunity to
express their sincere gratitude for all the stakeholders for
their continued encouragement and support, We would
like to place on record our sincere appreciation for the
commitment, dedication and hard work put in by every
member, who have always shown their confidence and
faithin the Compary.

On behalf of the Board

%L HASAN
Lahore: December 28, 2016 Chief Executive
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Human Resource Management

The Company is committed to build a strong organizational culture that is
shaped by empowered amployess who demonstrate a deep belief in
Company’s vision and values. Therefore, Human Resource Management
(HRM) is an integral part of our business strategy, The Company fosters
leadership, individual accountability and teamwork, The main objectives of
the Carmparny’s HEM policy are:

» Salecting the right person, with the right experience, at the nght time,
offering the right compeansation.

* Developing Management philosophies and practices o promote and
encourage motivationand retention of the best employees.

= Hecognizing and rewarding employees’ contribution to the business.

s Foatering the concept of team work and synergetic efforts.

* Encouraging and supporting team concepts and team building
technigues.

« MNurturing a climate of open communications between management and
Employess.

* Making all reasonable efforts to achieve a high guality of work-life

balance
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OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH,
k SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL
(HSE) MANAGEMENT

The Company is committed to achiave excellence in Occupational Safaty,
Health and Environmental protection, The Company encourages awareness
in these areas amongst our emplovees, customers, suppliers and all those
who are associated with us in our activities. Our goal in respect of safety,
health and environment is to minimize all adverse envircnmental and health
impacts arising out of our ocperations and to conserve all kinds of resources
and adhere to all legal regulations.

Maintenance of health and safety standards at our mills and offices is cur top
priority. The Company is committed to actively managing health and safety
risks associated with our business and is actively working towards improving
our procedures to reduce, remove or control the risk of fire, accidents or
injuries to emplovees and visitors, The Company strives to provide a safe and '
healthy workplace for its employees and to act responsibly towards the
communities and environment, in which it operates. It realizes this through
the commitrment of its leadership, the dedication of its staff and application of
the high professional standards of work, Management takes all possible
measures to prevent unsafe activities by its hiring practices and through the
implementation of effective managament, human resources and operational
policies,

-



Performance Management

1. Giving a sense of direction and challenge to the Individual and their team
through role clarity,

2. Helping different functions and departments to go beyond targets and
benchmarks and take quantum jurmps,

3. Creating a supportive and empowering culture inthe organization.

4. ldentify talent for succession planning,

b ldentifying employees performing &
required to improve their performa
jre erpatuity,

nmitrment of




Environmental Responsibility Policy

Ensure our products, operations and services comply with relevant environmental
legislation and regulations.

Maintain and continually improve our environmental managemeant systems to more
stringent requirements as dictated by specific markets or local regulations.

Operate in a manner that is comittad to continuous improvement in environmental
sustainability through recycling, conservation of resources, prevention of peliution,
product development and promotion of environmental responsibility amongst our
employess,

Responsibly managing use of hazardous materials in our operations, products and
senvices to promote recycling and reuse of our byproducts.

Inform suppliers and contractors, of our environmental expectations and require
them to adopt environmental management practices aligned with these
expectations.
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Tree Plantation Programme

“Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited has arranged
regular tree plantation within factory premises and
nearby areas to provide a healthy environment.”
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Corporate Social Respohéibility

The Company's social and emvironmental responsibility
policy reflects the Company’s recognition that there is a
strong positive correlation between financial performance
and corporate social and environmental responsibility. The
Company believes that the observance of sound
environmental and social strategies are essential for building
strong brand and safeguarding reputation, which in turn is
vital for kong term success of the Company:,

Growers Financial and Technical Support
Financial support policy is designed to support deserving
farmers. Cur policy support farmers by providing interest free
loan in the form of cash or fertilizers, pesticida, cane seeds or
any other product. These loans are provided without any
collateral. The Company has distributed loan of As.10.8
Million in 2016 to raise the productivity and income of the
farming communities.

The Company is also providing technical support to growers
through our professional team consisting of social
organizers, qualified officers for demonstrations and
research work thus playing its part to enhance capacity
building of local community which in turn leads to eliminating
paverty in the ragion. Further, our team conducts periodical
visits to the farms in order 1o assess the growth and health of
crop and advise accordingly to the growers which
contributes vital role in getting high crops yields per acre.

‘:ﬁl l.-"'I L el

Pest Management

Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited, in consultation with
Agricultural Research Institute of Faisalabad, has developed
an effective mechanism to pre-empt the PEST attack in its
area of procurament. Thisis being dona through by in-housa
production of TRACOGAMA cards and then distributing
these to the farmers on subsidized rates. Moreover, the
Company is also working in close coordination with its
farmer community and is regularly creating awareness
through “PEST warning and control system”,

Quality Education for All

Under its GSR program, Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited has
provided land for "Girls Higher Secondary School,
Jauharabad” whera more than 500 students are enrolled.
Basic facilities are also provided by The Company to school
and local communities are involved in monitoring the
parformance of school administration which s resulting in
increased enroiment of students and reduction in drop-out
ratio,

Rural Health Development Programme

The Company perodically invests and conducts seminars in
creating awareness relating to several health issues among the
local community, in conjunction with tha local THC. Mills also
has sufficient Medical First Ald facilities on its premises following
its corparate vision of “Prevention is better than Cure”.



Contribution to National Exchequer

During the year, the Company has contributed an amount of
Rs. 108.167 milion towards national exchequer in shape of
taxes, duties, cess stc. The Company has also contributed
through earning of valuable foreign exchange amounting to
LISSE 7,157 milion through export of refine sugar,

Environmental Protection Measures

The Company has initiated a program for plantation of trees
in the factory to reduce the greenhouse effect. The
Company's main aim is to set a precedent of planting trees
among the locals. Under this programme, the Company has
already planted around 250 trees within its surrounding
areas. During this financial year a tolal of Rs 230,000/- was
spent on this project. The Company has also undertaken a
programme to maintain green belts around the roads leading
to sugar mills in coordination with the lecal Authorities.

Employee Welfare

Emergency Health Care Unit

Incase of any accident/misshape, company provides first aid
facilities and medicines on immediately bases and the
inured are then transported to nearby hospitals for their
further treatments, A 24/7 stand by ambulance service is
available with HCU.

4

Subsidize Supply of Basic Necessities

The Company has extended subsidies against basic
necessities including accommeodation, food, security and
efectricity for its employaes,

Umrah Scholarships

The Company has created a fund for its employess in order
to facilitate them to perform their religious duties. In this
context, TWO employees, chosan through simple balloting
are sent to perform UMRBAH, annually, where the Company,
through the said fund, pays all the expenses.

Sports & Recreation

Annual tournaments for cricket, football and tennis are
sponsored by the Company for the healthy compatition and
participation of all employess.

Financial Assistance

A yearly fund of Rs, 500,000/- has been created by the
Company in order to support families of its deceased
employees. The said fund is distributed on required bases.

Promoting Art & Culture

For the promation of local art and culture, functions and
gatherings are arranged on periodical bases throughout the
off-season.
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Key Operating Data For Six Years

Operating days Days a5 93
Cane Crushed Tons 340,518 252,995 28
Sugar Produced Tons 33,205 24 492 2
Sugar Recovery Yoage 8.75 8.68
Molasses Produced Tons 15,890 11,292 1
Maolasses Recovery Soage 4.70 4,46
Bagasze Produced Tons 102,158 76,075 g
VF. Cake Produced Tons 10,215 7,590

85 a7 g9 114
1,997 321,022 427,690 406,388
5,975 26,420 35,846 30,673

8.22 B.23 B.33 7.55
2,915 15,048 21,271 20,629
4,68 4.68 497 5.08
7,165 90,966 122,747 125,855
8,460 8,631 12,831 12,192

Operating Days
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Key Financial Data For Six Years
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Balance Sheet (Rs. 000) FY2016 FY2015 FY2014 FY2013 FY2012 FY2011
Mon current assets 2,786,497 2,198,258 2,291,818 2245685  2.451.256 1,6864123
Current assets 441,667 551,977 305,022 708,734 586,950 827,053
Currant liabilities 214,364 485,282 299,957 655,619 1,185.667 1,100,122
Mon current liabilities 365,348 286,474 341,030 1,186,366 813,577 844,331
it Shareholders equity 2,648,452 1,878479 1,955,853 1,109,433 1.038.961 546,663 I
-
Profit & Loss Account (Rs. 000)
Sales - net 2096363 1,455,108 1,744,056 1,143,758 1.963,708 1,640,935
Gross profit! {loss) 208,145 106,330 (156,073) (342,222) (96,364) 141,704
EBITDA 224,214 120,231 18,802 541 440 (154,502) 116,378
EBIT 135,662 58,162 (41,221} 479,930 (181,199} 68,020
Profit/ (ioss) before tax 82,036 7.151 {77.185) 434804  (276,430) (44,568)
kPmﬂt.-’ {loss) after tax 105,997 5121 {38,881} 295,843 (197,587) (51,808) P
= ™
Cash Flows (Rs. 000)
Cash flows from operations B2,036 7.151 (77,185) 434,804 (276,430} (44,668)
Operating activities 41,991 (72,505) {77,678) (562,892) 297,633 (334,324)
Investing activities (106,439} (92,145) {61,285) 88,200 (13,170) 4,722
Financing activities 48,723 191 568 141,406 473,964 (283,763} 331,862
Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the vear 34,263 7,346 4,902 5,621 4 921 2,661
Cash and cash equivalents
\ at the end of the year 19,538 34,263 7,346 4,902 5,621 4,921 Y.
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Financial Ratios For Six Years

" Profitability Ratios FY2016  FY2015 FY2014  FY2013  FY2012  FY2011 |
Gross profit to sales 9.93% 7.24% -8.95% -29.92% -4.91% B8.64%
Met profit after tax to sales 5.06% 0.35% -2.23% 25 87% -10.06% -3.16%
EBITDA to salas 10.70% 8.26% 1.08% 47.34% -7.87% 7.09%
Return an Equity 4.00% 0.26% -1.99% 26.67% -18.02% -0.48%

| Return on Capital Empioyed 5.12% 2.94% -2.11% 43.26% 17.44% 12.46% |

" Liquidity Ratios )
Current ratio 2.06 1.14 1.02 1.08 0.50 075
Cluick ratio 1.82 1.02 0.88 0.41 0.23 0.23
Cash to current liabilities 9.11% 7.06% 2.45% 0.75% 0.47% 0.45%
Cash flow from

operations to sales 3.91% 0.49% -4.43% 38.02% -14.08% -2.72% )

L

" Activity Ratios N
Inventory turnover 8.65 13.49 46.04 92.79 79.22 85.41
Mo. of days in Inventory 42,19 27.06 7.83 3.83 4.61 4.27
Debtar turnover 10.14 2283 6.69 3.65 2.21 583
Mo. of days in Receivables 35.98 16.13 54,54 100.05 165.39 f1.54
Craditor turnover 20,23 35.41 25.39 64.52 58.69 41,78
Mo. of days in Payables 18.04 10.31 14.38 5.66 6.22 8.74
Operating Cycla &80.13 32.88 48,10 95.33 163.78 57.08
Total assets turmover Q.70 0.54 0.63 0.38 .71 Q.72

.\‘FiHEd assets tumover 0.84 0.65 0.77 0.49 0.85 0.99

€ Y
Investment Valuation Ratios
Earnings per share 9,72 0.47 (3.586) 2712 (1B.11) 14.75]
Price Earning ratio 5.76 36.22 {2.84) 0.38 {0.29} (0.82)
Dividend Yield 1.79% - - - - -
Dividend Payout ratio 10.29% = = = - =
Dividend Cowver ratic 972 - - - - -
Cash Dividend per share 10.00% - - - - -
Market value per share 56.00 17.00 10.13 10.25 5.22 3.90

L Breakup valus per share gl s 32.18 81,43 1.93 (27.43) (9.32) ¥

| Capital Structure Ratios ]
Dbt to equity ratio 1.22 1.39 1.33 2.66 202 4.56

! Interest coverage ratio 253 1.14 {1.15) 10.64 {1.90) 0.60 )
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Graphical Representation Stakeholders’ Information
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Pattern & Cate: ories of Shareholding

Cane Processing (Pvt) Lid. (CDC) 5,608,165
hirs. Maryam Ahsan Magbaoal 1,018,844
Mrs. lama Ahmed 1.016,.202
Mr. Mumshad Al B84, 205
Mational Bank of Pakistan

Mational Bank of Pakistan, Trustes Dept, {COC) | r"_j'll.hﬁ.‘-?
Ganeral Pubbs Sharaholding less then 5% JBE1 68T

w -i'l



Jauaharabad Sugar Mills Limited

Annual Report 2015-16

Pattern of Shareholding
Form “34" The Companies Ordinance, 1984

1. Incorporation Mumber 0002804
2. Name of the Company Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited
3. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at September 30, 2016
" 4. Number of Shareholding Total Shares Percentage of |
Shareholders From To Held Total Capital
628 1 100 14,955 0137
238 101 500 61,748 0.566
B3 501 1,000 51,260 0.470
95 1,001 5,000 208,982 1.918
14 5,001 10,000 105,200 0.964
5 10,001 15,000 67,136 0.615
1 15,001 20,000 19,600 0.179
1 20,001 25,000 20,947 0.192
2 25,001 30,000 65,451 0.508
1 30,001 35,000 33,000 0.302
1 35,001 40,000 36,912 0.338
1 50,001 55,000 50,500 0483
1 55,001 20,000 56,500 0.5718
1 60,001 65,000 64,210 0.589
1 65,001 70,000 65,821 0,803
1 150,001 155,000 152,622 1.399
1 380,001 395,000 391,887 3.592
1 405,001 410,000 405,795 3.720
1 590,001 595,000 594,205 5.447
1 715,001 720,000 719,955 6593
2 1,015,001 1,020,000 2,035,046 18.653
1 5,695,001 5,700,000 5,698,165 52.230
1,061 10,909,797 100.000 |
=
5. Categories of Shareholders Shares held Percentage ‘]
5.1 Directors, Chief Exscutive Officer, and their Spouse and Minor Children 15,000 01375
5.2 Associated Companiss, Undertakings and Related Parties 5,698,185 52,2298
5.3 NIT and ICP 723,444 6.6311
5.4 Banks, Development Financial Institutions and
Mon Banking Financial Institutions 3,497 0.0321
5.5 Insurance Companies 179,559 1.6458
5.6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds - 0.0000
5.7 Shareholder's Holding 10% or mare 5,698,165 82.2288
5.8 General Public
a. Local 4,210,099 38.5801
b. Foreign -- --
5.9 Others (to be Specified)
Joint Stock Companies 10,069 0.0923
Pension Funds 65,821 0.6033
Others 2,537 0.0233
\ A
6. Signature of Company Secretary
7. Name of Signatory Imran lyas
8. Designantion Company Secretary
9. CMNIC Number

10, Date 43
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As on September 30, 2016

Categories of Shareholding Required Under Code of Corporate Governance

P

Sr. No. Name No. of Shares Held

Percentage N

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail):

1 Cane Processing (Pvi) Ltd. (CDC) 5,698,165 22208
Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail): - -
Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):

1 Mr. &tif Zahesr Faroogi 5,000 0.0458

2 Mr. Ghias Ul Hasan 5,000 0.0458

3 Mr. Amjad Bashir Hussain 2,500 0.0229

4 Mr. Farhan lyas (CPL Nominee) 2,500 0.0229

5 Mr. Jamal Ahmad (CPL Nomines) - —-

@ Mr. Shahrukh Taimour (CPL Nomineea)

7 Mr. Muhammad Aamir Beg (CPL Nomines) = =
Executives: 391,887 2.5821
Public Sector Companies & Corporations: - -
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance
Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful,

Modarabas and Pension Funds: 248 877 22812
Shareholders Holding Five Percent or more Voting Interest in
The Listed Company (Name Wise Detail):

1 Cane Processing (Pvt) Lid. {CDC) 5,698,165 522298

2 Mrs. Maryam Ahsan Magbool 1,018,844 9.3388

3 Mrs. lsma Ahmad 1,016,202 9.3146

4 Mr. Mumshad Ali {CDC) 594,205 5.4465

5 Mational Bank of Pakistan

Mational Bank of Pakistan 720,694 6.6059
- Trustee Deptt, (CDC)
All Trades in the Shares of the Listed Company,
Carried out by its Directors, Executives and their
Spouses and Minor Children shall also be Disclosed: il il
B J




Statement of Compliance with the

Code of Corporate Governance

This statement is being presented to comply with
the Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)
Contained in Regulation MNo. 5.19 of listing
regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited for
the purpose of establishing a framework of good
governance, whereby a listed company is managed
in compliance with the best practices of corporate
governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained
inthe CCG in the following manner:

1. The Company encourages the representation
of independent, non-executive directors and
executive directors representing minority
interests on its Board of directors. At present
the board includes:

Category Names

Independent Directors | Mr. Atif Zaheer Faroogi
i Mr. Aamir Beg

Executive Directors i Mr. Ghias Ul Hasan

iv Mr. Shahrukh Taimour
v Mr. Amjad Bashir Hussain

Mon-Executive Directors  vi Mr. Farhan llyas
vii Mr. Jamal Ahmed

The Independent Directors meet the criteria
of independence under clause 5.19.1(b) of
the CCG

2. The directors have confirmed that none of
them is serving as a director on more than
seven listed companies, including this
Company.

3. All the resident directors of the company are
registered as taxpayers and none of them has
defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking
company, a DFl or an NBFI or, being a broker
of a stock exchange, has been declared as a
defaulter by that stock exchange.

4. Two casual vacancies occurred on the Board
of Directars were created on March 02, 2016
and were filled up by the directors within 14
days thereof.

10.

1.

12.

Jauaharabad Sugar Mills Limited

Annual Report 2015-16

The Company has prepared a "Code of
Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate
steps have been taken to disseminate it
throughout the company along with its
supporting policies and procedures.

. The board has developed a vision/mission

statement, overall corporate strategy and
significant policies of the company. A
complete record of particulars of significant
policies along with the dates on which they
were approved or amended has been
maintained.

All the powers of the board have been duly
exercised and decisions on material
transactions, including the appointment and
determination of remuneration and terms and
conditions of employment of the Chief
Executive Office [CEQ], other executive and
non-executive directors, have been taken by
the board/shareholders.

. The meetings of the board were presided

over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by
a director elected by the board for this
purpose and the board met at least once in
every quarter, Written notices of the board
meetings, along with the agenda and working
papers, were circulated at least seven days
before the meetings. The minutes of the
meetings were appropriately recorded and
circulated.

. No Orientation course has been arranged

during the year.

During the year, there was no change in the
position of company Secretary, Chief
Financial Officer [CFQ] and Head of Internal
Audit.

The directors' report for this year has been
prepared in compliance with the
requirements of the CCG and fully describes
the salient matters required to be disclosed.

The financial statements of the Company
were duly endorsed by CEO and CFO before
approval of the board.
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Statement of Compliance with the

Code of Corporate Governance

T3

14.

15.

16:

17.

18.

19.

20.

The directors, CEQ and executives do not
hold any interest in the shares of the company
other than that disclosed in the pattern of
shareholding.

The Company has complied with all the
corporate and financial reporting
requirements of the CCG.

The board has formed an Audit Committee. It
comprises three members; all of them are
non-executive directors and the chairman of
the committee is an independent director,

The meetings of the audit committee were
held at least once every quarter prior to
approval of interim and final results of the
Company and as required by the CCG. The
terms of reference of the committee have
been formed and advised to the commitiee for
compliance.

The board has formed an HR and
Remuneration Committee. It comprises three
members; all of them are non-executive
directors and the chairman of the commitiee
is an independent director.

The Board has set-up effective internal audit
function.

The statutory auditors of the company have
confirmed that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the guality control
review program of the ICAP, that they or any of
the partners of the firm, their spouses and
minor children do not hold shares of the
company and that the firm and all its partners
are in compliance with International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines
on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAPR.

The statutory auditors or the persons
associated with them have not been
appointed to provide other services, exceptin
accordance with the listing regulations and
the auditors have confirmed that they have
observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

21,

22.

23.

24.

The 'closed period', prior to the
announcement of interimffinal results, and
business decisions, which may materially
affect the market price of company's
securities, was determined and intimated to
directors, employees and stock exchange(s).

Material/price sensitive information has been
disseminated among all market participants
at once through stock exchange.

The company has complied with the
requirements relating to maintenance of
register of persons having access to inside
information by designated senior
management officer in the timely manner and
maintained proper record including basis for
inclusion or exclusion of names of persons
from the said list.

We confirm that all other material principles
enshrined in the CCG have been complied
with [2] except for the following, toward which
reasonable progress is being made by the
company to seek compliance by the end of
the next accounting year.

Forand on behalf of the Board

Hetat

* GHIAS UL HASAN
Chief Executive

Lahore: December 28, 2016



Review Report to the Members on Statement of
Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance

Jauaharabad Sugar Mills Limited
Annual Report 2015-16

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in
the Code of Corporate Governance ("the Code™) prepared by the Board of Directors (“the Board")
of Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended September 30, 2016 to
comply with the requirements of Rule 5.19 of the Rule Book of the Pakistan Stock Exchange
where the Company is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified,
whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the
provisions of the Code and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Code. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company personnel and
review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Code.

As a part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal
controls covers all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval its related party transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and transactions which are not
executed at arm'’s length price and recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing
mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent
of approval of related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether the related party
transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, except for the above instance of non-compliance, nothing has come to our
attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately
reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained in
the Code as applicable to the Company for the year ended September 30, 2016.

Further, we would like to highlight instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the

Code as reflected in paragraph 9 of the Statement of Compliance that the orientation courses of
directors were not conducted.

Lahore: December 28, 2016
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-
Auditors’ Report to the Members

We have audited the annexed statement of financial position of Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited (“the
Company”) as at September 30, 2016 and the related statement of comprehensive income, statement of cash
flows and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended
and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company's management to establish and maintain a system of internal control,
and prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and
the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said
statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall
presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion and, after due verification, we report that :-

(a) in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Ordinance, 1984;

(b) inouropinion,

i) the statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income together with the
notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are
in agreement with the books of accounts and are further in accordance with accounting policies
consistently applied;

i)  the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company's business; and

iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were
in accordance with the objects of the Company;

(c) inour opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, condensed statement of comprehensive income, statement of cash
flows and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof conform with
approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of
the state of the Company's affairs as at September 30, 2016, its cash flows and changes in equity for
the yearthen ended; and

(d) inour opinion, no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Usher Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII
of 1980).

50 Lahore: December 28, 2016
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Statement of Financial Position
As at September 30, 2016

2016 2015 2014
Note Rupees Rupees Rupees
Restated Restated
Non-current assets
Fixed assets 5 2,786,100,910 2,197,804,524 2,291,389,026
Long-term deposits 6 395,951 453,811 428,811
2,786,496,861 2,198,258,335 2,291,817,837
Current assets
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 7 64,936,211 78,047,441 106,868,208
Stock-in-trade 8 30,432,460 59,087,929 40,673,666
Loans and advances 9 44,492,986 44,268,336 11,033,197
Trade Debts- Unsecured Considered good - 116,517,826 63,949,980
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 10 8,114,957 7,263,210 8,132,805
Other receivables 11 206,739,717 22,872,372 25,557,376
Tax refunds due from the Government 12 67,412,584 51,020,762 41,461,394
Short term investments 13 - 15,000,000 -
Cash and bank balances 14 19,538,233 34,262,761 7,345,620
Non current assets held for sale 15 - 123,636,222 -
441,667,148 551,976,859 305,022,246
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 209,348,024 261,870,602 264,347,831
Accrued mark-up 17 475,333 12,916,959 2,522,374
Short term borrowings 18 - 197,407,861 20,000,000
Current portion of long term liabilities 20 4,541,040 13,086,937 13,086,937
214,364,397 485,282,359 299,957,142
Working capital employed 227,302,751 66,694,500 5,065,104
3,013,799,612 2,264,952,835 2,296,882,941
Contingencies and commitments 19 - - -
Non-current liabilities
Long term finances 20 32,644,519 13,086,935 26,173,872
Loan from sponsors 21 - - -
Long term advances 22 115,000,000 115,000,000 158,500,000
Long term provision 23 1,309,000 1,309,000 1,309,000
Deferred taxation 24 216,394,437 157,077,799 155,047,091
365,347,956 286,473,734 341,029,963
Net capital employed 2,648,451,656 1,978,479,101 1,955,852,978
Represented by:
Share capital and reserves
Share capital 25 109,097,970 109,097,970 109,097,970
Capital reserve - premium on right shares 26,879,210 26,879,210 26,879,210
Loan from sponsors 1,123,935,384 325,106,255 885,311,004
Share deposit money - 577,710,218 -
Revenue reserves :
- General reserve 62,000,000 62,000,000 62,000,000
- Accumulated losses (39,696,504) (172,050,649) (194,861,557)
22,303,496 (110,050,649) (132,861,557)
Revaluation surplus on property,
plant and equipment - net of tax 26 1,366,235,596 1,049,736,097 1,067,426,351

2,648,451,656

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

1,978,479,101

o 2
oy i
3
vl

1,955,852,978

ot i
- Ghias Ul Hasan

Chief Executive Officer

Amjad Bashir Huissain
Director

Lahore
December 28, 2016
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Profit & Loss Account
For the year ended September 30, 2016

2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupees
Sales 27 2,096,363,202 1,455,104,935
Cost of sales 28 1,888,218,218 1,349,775,097
Gross profit 208,144,984 105,329,838
Operating expenses:
Distribution cost 29 9,003,387 7,549,153
Administrative expenses 30 82,440,649 68,259,049
(91,444,036) (75,808,202)
Operating profit 116,700,948 29,521,636
Finance cost 31 (53,626,365) (51,010,475)
Other income 32 18,961,537 28,640,201
Profit before taxation 82,036,120 7,151,362
Taxation 33 23,961,226 (2,030,708)
Profit after taxation 105,997,346 5,120,654
Earning per share - basic and diluted 34 9.72 0.47
The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Lahore G,,v_ﬁigs Ul Hasan Amjad Bashir Hiissain

December 28, 2016 Chief Executive Officer Director
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended September 30, 2016

2016 2015

Rupees Rupees
Profit after taxation 105,997,346 5,120,654
Other comprehensive income for the year
ltems that will never be reclassified
to comprehensive income
Incremental depreciation for the year 26,356,799 17,690,254
Total comprehensive income for the year 132,354,145 22,810,908
The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

,@ et Hata.a iﬁxl,..“ f"\

Lahore Ghias Ul Hasan Amjad Bashir Hussain

December 28, 2016 Chief Executive Officer Director
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended September 30, 2016

Balance as on October 01, 2014
as previously reported

Effect of restatement as
explained in note 21.2

Balance as on
October 01, 2014 (Restated)

Loan provided during the year
Repayments made during the year

Mark up written off

Incremental depreciation for the year
Share deposit money

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as on
September 30, 2015 (Restated)

Balance as on October 01, 2015

Loan provided during the year
Repayments made during the year
Incremental depreciation for the year
Share deposit money

Addition/(Deletion)

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as on
September 30, 2016

Share
Capital

109,097,970

109,097,970

109,097,970

109,097,970

109,097,970

Share General
premium reserve

26,879,210 | 62,000,000

26,879,210 | 62,000,000

26,879,210 | 62,000,000

26,879,210 | 62,000,000

26,879,210 = 62,000,000

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Lahore
December 28, 2016

Share
deposit
money

577,710,218

577,710,218

577,710,218

(577,710,218)

- Ghias Ul Hasan

Chief Executive Officer

Revaluation
surplus

1,067,426,351

1,067,426,351

(17,690,254)

1,049,736,097

1,049,736,097

(26,356,799)

342,856,298

1,366,235,596

Loan from  Accumulated
losses

sponsors

885,311,004

885,311,004

42,246,846

(24,741,377)

(577,710,218)

325,106,255

325,106,255
442,059,800
(220,940,889)
577,710,218

1,123,935,384

(194,861,557)

(194,861,557

22,810,908

(172,050,649)

(172,050,649)

132,354,145

(39,696,504)

Total

(In Rupees)

1,070,541,974

885,311,004

1,955,852,978

42,246,846

(24,741,377)
(17,690,254)

22,810,908

1,978,479,101

1,978,479,101
442,059,800
(220,940,889)
(26,356,799)

342,856,298
132,354,145

2,648,451,656

i
i

3

Amjad Bashir Hussain

Director
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended September 30, 2016

2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupees
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before taxation 82,036,120 7,151,362
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 5.1.1 88,551,096 62,068,743
Balances written off 32 (20,220,939) -
Commission written off (20,000) -
Gain on foreign currency transaction (299,278) -
Long term markup from sponsors written off - (24,741,377)
Provision for WPPF 4,317,691 -
Long term advances - (43,500,000)
Finance cost 31 53,626,365 51,010,475
Operating profit before working capital changes 207,991,055 51,989,203
Working capital changes
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 13,111,230 28,820,767
Stock-in-trade 28,655,469 (18,414,263)
Loans and advances (224,650) (33,235,139)
Trade debts 116,517,826 (52,567,846)
Trade deposits and short term prepayments (851,747) 869,595
Other receivables (183,867,345) 2,685,004
Trade and other payables (56,551,517) (2,477,229)
(83,210,734) (74,319,111)
Cash generated from/used in operations 124,780,321 (22,329,908)
Tax paid (16,391,822) (9,559,368
WPPF Paid (329,093) -
Finance cost paid (66,067,991) (40,615,890)
(82,788,906) (50,175,258)
Net cash generated from/used in operating activities 41,991,415 (72,505,166)
Cash flow from investing activities
Addition in property, plant and equipment (106,496,540) (92,120,463)
Long term deposits 57,860 (25,000)
Net cash used in investing activities (106,438,680) (92,145,463)
Cash flow from financing activities
Long term finances 11,011,687 (13,086,937)
Short term investments 15,000,000 (15,000,000)
Short term borrowings (197,407,861) 177,407,861
Loan from sponsors 221,118,911 42,246,846
Net cash generated from financing activities 49,722,737 191,567,770
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (14,724,528) 26,917,141
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 34,262,761 7,345,620
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 14 19,538,233 34,262,761
The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Cpand Hita he— i
Lahore "Ghias Ul Hasan Amjad Bashir Hussain

December 28, 2016 Chief Executive Officer Director
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2016

1

Reporting entity

Jauharabad Sugar Mills Limited "the Company" (formerly known as Kohinoor Sugar Mills Limited) was incorporated in
Pakistan in 1968 under the repealed Companies Act 1913 (now Companies Ordinance, 1984). The shares of the Company
are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchanges. The registered office of the Company is situated at 109-A, Street No.3, Cavalry
Ground, Lahore Cantt., and the mill is located at Jauharabad, District Khushab, Pakistan. The principal activity of the
Company is manufacturing and sale of sugar and its by-products.

Basis of preparation

2.1

2.2

2.3

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Approved Accounting Standards comprise of
such International Accounting Standards as notified under the provisions of the Companies Ordinance, 1984.
Wherever, the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 or the directives issued by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan differ with the requirements of these standards, the requirements of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 orthe requirements of the said directives take precedence.

Change in accounting policy

Pursuant to the early adoption of Technical Release 32 "Accounting Directors' Loan" (TR-32) issued by Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) dated 25 January 2016 the company has changed it's accounting policy
relating to the interest free loan received from directors, shareholders and owners. As per clause 3.3.1 of TR-32" A
Loan to an entity by the director which is agreed to be paid at the discretion of the entity dose not pass the test of
liability and is to be recorded as equity at face value. This is not subsequently remeasured. The decision by the entity
at any time in future to deliver cash or any other financial asset to settle the director's loan would be a direct debit to
equity." The effect of change in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively as described in note 21.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention except for freghold land, building
and plant & machinery which is stated at revalued amount.

The Company's significant accounting policies are stated in note 5. Not all of these significant policies require the
management to make difficult, subjective or complex judgments or estimates. The following is intended to provide an
understanding of the policies the management considers critical because of their complexity, judgment of estimation
involved in their application and theirimpact on these financial statements. Estimates and judgments are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. These judgments involve assumptions or estimates in respect of future events
and the actual results may differ from these estimates. The areas involving higher degree of judgments or complexity
orareas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment on a regular basis. Any
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change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant
and equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and the impairment.

Taxation

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities.
Instances where the Company's view differs from the views taken by the Income Tax Department at the assessment
stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the
amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

Provision for inventory obsolescence and doubtful receivables

The Company reviews the carrying amount of stores and spares on a regular basis and provision is made for
obsolescence if there is any change in usage pattern and physical form of related stores and spares. Further the
carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are assessed on a regular basis and if there is any doubt about the
reliability of these receivables, appropriate amount of provision is made.

Other areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significantto the financial statements are as follows.

» Estimation of net realizable value
» Computation of deferred taxation
* Disclosure of contingencies

3 New standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and new interpretations

3.1 Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards which became effective during the year ended
September 30, 2016:

There were certain amendments to the approved accounting standards which became effective during the period but
are considered not to be relevant or having significant effect on the Company’s operations and are, therefore, not
disclosed inthese financial statements.

3.2 Amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective for the company's accounting periods
beginning after October 1,2016:

There are certain new standards and amendments to the approved accounting standards that are mandatory for the
company’s accounting period beginning after October 01,2016 but are considered not to be relevant or are not
expected to have any significant effect on the Company’s operations and are, therefore, not disclosed in these
financial statements.

4  Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated:

S7
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41

4.2

4.3

Staff retirement benefits
Defined contribution plan

The Company operates a defined contribution provident fund scheme (the Fund) forits permanent employees. Equal
monthly contributions are made to the fund both by the Company and employees at the rate of 10% of basic salary.
The Company's contribution is charged to the statement of comprehensive income.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the profit and loss
account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or below equity, in which case it is
recognized in equity or below equity respectively.

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income, as adjusted for tax purposes, at the current rate of tax after
taking into account all tax credits, rebates and available tax losses determined in accordance with prevailing tax laws.
The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in
previous years arising from assessments made during the year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary differences at the balance sheet
date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized for
all deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused tax losses and tax credits to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deferred tax asset can be utilized, except where the
deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability that, at the time of transaction, affects neither the accounting nor taxable profits.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilized.

Deferred tax asset and liability is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on the rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date.

Property, plant and equipment - owned

Recognition

Property, plant and equipment except for freehold land, buildings, plant and machinery are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any identified impairmentloss. Freehold land, buildings, plant and machinery are
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stated at revalued amount. Cost of tangible assets consists of historical cost pertaining to erection / construction
period and other directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to working condition.

Subsequent cost are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to income during the period in
whichthey areincurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation on all items of property, plant and equipment except for freehold land is charged to income applying the
reducing balance method so as to write off the historical cost/revalued amounts of an asset over its estimated useful
life at the rates as disclosed in note 6 Depreciation on addition is charged from the date the asset is available for use
and on disposal up to date when the assetis derecognized.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on Derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of comprehensive
income forthe yearthe assetis derecognized.

4.4  Accounting for leases and assets subject to finance lease
4.41 Finance lease
Recognition

Leases where the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance lease. Assets subjectto finance lease are initially recognized at the commencement of the lease term
at the lower of present value of minimum lease payments under the lease agreements and the fair value of
the leased assets, each determined at the inception of the lease. Subsequently these assets are stated at
costless accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss. The related rental obligations, net off
finance cost, are included in liabilities against assets subject to finance lease. The liabilities are classified as
currentand non current depending upon the timing of payments.

Financial charges

Lease payments are allocated between the liability and finance cost so as to achieve a constant rate on the
balance outstanding. The finance cost s charged to income over the lease term.

Depreciation
Assets acquired under a finance lease are depreciated in the same manner and at the same rates used for

similar owned assets, so as to depreciate these assets over their estimated useful lives in view of certainty of
ownership of these assets atthe end of lease term. Depreciation of the leased assets is charged to income.
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4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Deferred income

Income arising from sale and lease back transaction, if any, which results in finance lease, is deferred and
amortized equally over the lease period.

4.4.2 Operating lease

Leases where significant portion of the risk and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the income on a
straight-line basis overthe period of lease.

Non current assets held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, are classified as held for sale if it is highly
probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use. Such assets, or
disposal groups, are generally measured at lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to remaining assets and liabilities on a pro
rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefit
assets, investment property or biological assets, which continue to be measured in accordance with the Company’s
other accounting policies. Impairment losses on initial classification as held-for-sale or held-for-distribution and
subsequent gains and losses on remeasurement are recognized in profit or l0ss.

Once classified as held for sale, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are no longer amortized or
depreciated, and any equity-accounted investee is no longer equity accounted.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment losses. Transfers are made to relevant fixed
assets category as and when assets are available for use.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Recoverable amount
is the greater of fair value less cost to sell and value in use.

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined at average running cost. ltems
considered obsolete are carried at nil value. ltems in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other
charges incurred thereon. Costis determined at average running cost.

Stockintrade

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV) except molasses and bagasse which is valued
atNRV. Costin relation to raw material, workin process and finished goods represents average cost comprising
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direct material, labor and appropriate manufacturing overheads. NRV represents the estimated selling price less cost
necessarily to be incurred for such sale. Cost is determined as follows;

Work-in-process : At estimated cost.
Finished goods - sugar : Lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value

4.10 Revenue recognition

Sales are recorded on dispatch of goods to customers. Profit on deposits and advances is accounted for on a time
proportion basis using the applicable rate of return.

4.11 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Finance costs are accounted for on an accrual basis and are
included in current liabilities to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of the
borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset.
Such borrowing costs are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset up to the date of its commissioning.

4.12 Provisions
A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past event, and it is probable that an out flow of resource embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

4.13 Trade debts and other receivables
Trade debts originated by the Company are recognized and carried at original invoice value less any allowance for
uncollectible amounts. An estimated provision for doubtful debts is made when there is objective evidence that
collection of the full amount is no longer probable. The amount of provision is charged to income. Bad debts are
written off as incurred. Other receivables are stated at amortized cost. Known impaired receivables are written off,
while receivables considered doubtful are provided for.

4.14 Trade and other payables

Liabilities of trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to be
paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

4.15 Dividend

The dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period in which it is approved by the
shareholders.



62

Jauaharabad Sugar Mills Limited

Annual Report 2015-16

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2016

4.16 Financial instruments

417

418

4.19

4.20

41

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument and derecognized when the Company loses control of contractual rights that comprise
the financial assets and in case of financial liabilities when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities is included in the
statement of comprehensive income for the year.

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration
given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value,
amortized cost or cost, as the case may be. The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the
individual policy statements associated with each item.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Afinancial asset and financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
the Company has a legal enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on net basis
orto realize the assets and the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of statement of
cashflows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and bank balances.

Foreign currencies

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupee at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the balance sheet date, except those covered by forward contracts, which are stated at contracted rates. Foreign
currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates prevailing at the date of transaction except for those
covered by forward contracts, which are translated at contracted rates. Non monetary items are translated into Pak
Rupee on the date of transaction or on the date when fair values are determined. Exchange differences are included in
income currently.

Investments

Investment in subsidiary company is measured at cost in the Company's separate financial statements, as per the
requirements of IAS-27 “Separate Financial Statements”. However, at subsequent reporting dates, the Company
reviews the carrying amount of the investment and its recoverability to determine whether there is an indication that
suchinvestment has suffered animpairmentloss. If any such indication exists the carrying amount of the investment
is adjusted to the extent of impairment loss. Impairment losses are recognized as an expense.

Related party transactions

All transactions with related parties are carried out as arms' length transactions by the Company using the methods
prescribed underthe Companies Ordinance, 1984.
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4.22 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation
currency.

2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupees

o Fixed assets
Property, plant and equipment 5.1 2,731,855,625 2,053,261,350
94,245,285 144,543,174

Capital work-in-progress 5.2
2,786,100,910 2,197,804,524
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5.1.1

9.1.2

9.1.3

Depreciation for the year has been allocated as under:

Note
Cost of sales 28
Administrative expenses 29

Jauaharabad Sugar Mills Limited
Annual Report 2015-16

2016
Rupees

86,780,074
1,771,022

88,551,096

2015
Rupees

60,827,368
1,241,375

62,068,743

The value of labor colony land at Jauharabad acquired from Housing and Physical Planning Department,
Jauharabad has not yet been settled. The estimated liability on this account amounting to Rs.1,309,000 is
duly accounted forin books of accounts of the Company (see Note 24).

If the freehold land, building and plant and machinery were measured using the cost model, the carrying

amount would be as follows:

Particulars Cost
2016

Freehold land 1,648,310
Building on freehold land 180,181,047

Plant and machinery 1,414,742,493

1,596,571,850

2015
Freehold land 1,648,310
Building on freehold land 161,239,874

Plant and machinery 1,053,807,363

1,216,695,547

5.2 Capital work-in-progress

This cost incurred at BMR & E programme of the Company in previous year and transferred to fixed assets as

follows:
Description Opening Additions
balance
Plant and machinery 136,227,913 1,863,861
Advances for capital expenditure 8,315,261 52,381,424
144,543,174 54,245,285

Accumulated
depreciation

83,913,248
991,791,998

675,705,246

79,404,568
498,266,487

577,671,055

Transferred

136,227,913
8,315,261
144,543,174

Net book
value

(In Rupees)

1,648,310
96,267,799
822,950,495

920,866,604

1,648,310
81,835,306
555,540,876

639,024,492

Closing
balance

(In Rupees)
1,863,861

52,381,424
54,245,285
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5.2.1 Advances for capital expenditure relates to the purchase of plant & machinery.
6 Long-term Deposits

This represents interest free deposit for provision of utilities at plant and security to landlord of head office and are
refundable on this connection of services.

2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupees
7 Stores, spare parts and loose tools
Stores 28,697,812 43,633,701
Spare parts 34,541,647 34,209,644
Loose tools 1,696,752 204,096
64,936,211 78,047,441
8 Stock-in-trade
Work in process 1,999,238 2,565,381
Finished goods 8.1 28,433,222 56,522,548
30,432,460 59,087,929
8.1 Finished goods are unencumbered and free of charge.
9 Loans and advances
Advances to suppliers 17,522,395 29,722,863
Advances to employees 4,985,373 3,645,881
Agricultural loan 9.1 7,966,145 7,074,323
Other 643,705 3,825,269
L.C deposit 92 13,375,368 -
44,492,986 44,268,336

9.1 This represents interest free advances to sugarcane growers, which are adjustable against sugarcane supply by
them.

9.2 Thiscomprised depositagainstL.C forfixed assets of Rs. 8.99 million and consumables of Rs. 4.38 million.
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2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupees
10 Trade deposits and short term prepayments

Prepaid expenses 1,620,557 768,810
TCP deposit 6,494,400 6,494,400
8,114,957 7,263,210

11 Other receivables - unsecured considered good
Excise duty recoverable 11.1 10,500,922 10,500,922
Export fund refund 11.2 2,746,250 2,746,250
Special excise duty refundable 11.3 505,200 505,200
Rebate Receivable on Export of Sugar 11.4 183,722,500 -
Others 11.5 9,264,845 9,120,000
206,739,717 22,872,372

11.1 This represents refund allowed by the Central Excise Appellate Tribunal, Lahore, in the light of criteria set up by the
Supreme Court of Pakistan, against Central Excise Duty paid during the season 1988-89.

11.2 Thisrepresents relief granted by the Lahore High Court against previous years' demand.

11.3 This represents an amount paid under protest as 1% Special Excise Duty on the goods manufactured prior to Finance
Bill 2007, whereas it was leviable on goods manufactured/ imported from July 01,2007, vide Circular No. 1(3) Fed
2007 dated 28th August, 2007.

11.4 This represents rebate receivable from Government against export of sugar.

11.5 This represents FED/Sales taxamount recoverable from customers against sale of goods.

2016 2015
Rupees Rupees
12 Tax refunds due from the Government
Opening balance 51,020,762 41,461,394
Add: Tax deducted during the year 16,391,822 9,559,368

67,412,584 51,020,762
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12.1 The assessments of the Company have been completed for and up to financial year ended on September
30,2015.

13. Short term investments

Surplus funds are invested by the Company on short term profitable saving scheme, offered by the financial institution,
which are redeemable on 10 days notice period. All shortterm investments have been redeemed during the year.

2016 2015
Rupees Rupees

14 Cash and bank balances
Cash in hand 217,567 523,534
Cash at banks - saving accounts 14.1 25,163 86,470
Cash at banks - current accounts 19,295,503 33,652,757
19,538,233 34,262,761

14.1 The balances in saving accounts carry markup at 2.75% per annum (2015: Rs.4.50%).

15 Non current assets held for sale

Assets held for sale comprise of such assets, which consists of 60 ton boiler, steam generator set, reduction gear and
electric motor, against earlier decision the management has decided to re-utilise such plant and machinery for power
generation capacity of the project of the Radiant Power Private Limited, so accordingly such assets have been transferred to

68

fix assets and has been revalued as per detail stated in note 26 of revaluation surplus.

2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupees

16 Trade and other pyables
Creditors 26,595,434 158,505,946
Salaries and wages payable 11,968,159 4,058,607
Accrued liabilities 4,200,375 3,801,157
Advances from customers 16.1 115,051,239 65,389,965
Income tax deducted at source 323,204 1,185,098
Provision for taxation 33 7,483,672 -
Sugarcane cess payable 16.2 3,001,109 3,001,109
FED/ Sales tax payable 16.3 5,910,582 23,666,068
Security deposit 1,176,795 1,278,795
Unclaimed dividend 607,470 607,470
Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) 4,364,985 376,387
Other loans from associates 16.4 28,665,000 -
209,348,024 261,870,602
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17

18

16.1 This represents advances received from customers for molasses/sugar sales.

16.2 This represents sugarcane cess demanded by Gane Commissioner, Lahore against sugarcane
purchased from KPK.

16.3 This represents Federal Excise Duty and Sales Tax payable for the month of September, 2016.

16.4 Thisrepresents shorttermloanfrom associates.

2016 2015
Rupees Rupees
Accrued mark-up
Accrued mark-up on:
- Long term finances 475,333 370,546
- Short term borrowings - 12,546,413
475,333 12,916,959
Short term borrowings - secured Sanction
limit ‘Million'
MCB Bank Limited 300 - 197,407,861
- 197,407,861

18.1 This represents short term loan obtained from Muslim Commercial Bank Limited in the year 2015 and carries
mark-up at the rate of matching KIBOR plus 2%. The said loan is secured against

i) Prime security is pledge of shares of listed company in the name of sponsor of the company.
ii) Ranking charge of Rs. 400 million overall present and future plant and machinery of the company.
iii) Personal guarantee of COO and sponsor of the company.

iv) Corporate guarantee of M/s Cane Processing (Pvt) Ltd. "Holding Company".
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19 Contingencies and commitments

19.1 Contingencies

The followings are known contingencies as on September 30, 2016

19.1.1

19.1.2

19.1.3

19.1.4

19.1.5

Since Federal Excise Duty (FED) is leviable on goods produced or manufactured, therefore FED is not
leviable on sale of sugar produced prior to the Finance Bill 2011. Hence FED amounting to Rs. 58.881
million has not been accounted for in these financial statements. The Company has filed a writ petition in the
Honourable Lahore High Court against FBR show cause notice dated 19-09-2012 against the demand of
Rs. 58.881 million.

The Income Tax Department raised a demand of Rs. 197.075 million on account of non deduction of tax
while making payment to sugar cane suppliers. The demand was abolished by the Commissioner of
income tax like in some other similar cases. However, the department has filed an appeal against the
Commissioner's order. The company is hopeful that the tribunal decision would be in its favour.

The company has filed a writ petition against the amendments of finance act 2014 on "Alternate Corporate
taxes", implication on tax year 2013 of company against which a demand of Rs.50.262 million has been
established, the said amendments would not be implemented as the income realized was before the said
amendments, amendments become applicable after July 1, 2014.

The Company has filed an appeal before ATIR against the rectification order passed by Deputy
Commissioner Inland Revenue creating the demand of Rs.6.59 million by raising the rate of minimum tax
from 0.5% to 1% for the tax/assessment year 2011. Stay has been granted by ATIR against recovery of
suchdemand.

The Company has filed an appeal before ATIR against the assessment order passed by Deputy
Commissioner Inland Revenue creating FED/Sales Tax liability for Rs.11.72 million for the tax periods July
2012to June 2013. Stay has been granted by ATIR against recovery of such demand.

19.2 Commitments

19.2.1 Commitments in respect of capital expenditure at the year end is Rs.67.296 million (2015: Rs. 14.36
million).
2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupees
20 Long term finances - Secured
Faysal Bank Limited 20.1 4,541,040 26,173,872
Albaraka Bank Pakistan Limited 202 32,644,519 -
Less: Current portion 4,541,040 13,086,937
32,644,519 13,086,935
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20.1 This represents long term loan obtained from Faysal Bank Limited and carries mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR
plus 150 basis points and mark-up is payable on quarterly basis. The said loan is secured against:

i) First pari passu charge on fixed assets to the extent of Rs. 75 million and subordination of
loanfrom associates.

ii)  Firstchargetothe tune of Rs. 70 million on all present and future current assets of the company.
iii) Personal guarantee of sponsoring directors.
The loan was to be repaid in 16 equal quarterly principal installments of which 2 quarterly installments are payable.

20.2 This represents long term loan obtained from Albaraka Bank Pakistan Limited and carries mark-up at the rate of 3
months KIBOR plus 3% and mark-up is payable on quarterly basis. The said loan is secured against:

i) ABPL's exclusive charge over DM assets amounting to Rs.150M (including power plant and allied parts,
accessories, errections, civil construction etc to be registered with SECP).

ii) Lienoverimportdocuments.
iii) Pledge of 800,000 shares of Kohat Cement Company Limited in CDC account.

The loan was to be repaid on quarterly basis within 3 years after commissioning of power plant.

2016 2015 2014

Note Rupees Rupees Rupees

Restated Restated

21 Loan from sponsors

Opening balance 21.1 - - 649,368,796
Transactions - - 211,200,831
Mark up accrued - - 24,741,377
Reclassified in equity 212 - - (885,311,004)
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21.1 This loan has been provided by the sponsors of the Company, which is interest free to fulfill the financial
commitments of the Company, repayments will be made at the discretion of the Company.

21.2 This represents interest free loans provided to the Company by its sponsors. These loans are agreed to be
repayable at the Company's discretion which is intended to be exercised by the Company after 30th September
2017. Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) issued Technical Release 32 "Accounting Directors'
Loans" (TR-32) on 25th January 2016 which provides specific guidance on Directors' loans that are interest free
and repayable at the discretion of the entity. The Company has early adopted (TR-32) and has accounted for these
loans accordingly.

The company has recognized Loan from sponsors amounting to Rs. 902.82 million and 885.31 million as at 30th
September 2015 and 30th September 2014 respectively at face value and presented under share capital and
reserves. This adjustment has no impact on profit after tax, basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share
of the Company for the year ended 30th September 2015 and 30th September 2014.

22 Long term advances - unsecured

This represents interest free unsecured advances received from customers which are adjustable against sales after
September 30, 2017.

23 Longterm provision
This represents labor colony land at Jauharabad against which a case is pending with Physical and Planning Department,

Jauharabad. On account of legal proceedings the management expects that the payment against this liability shall arise
after September 30, 2017.

2016 2015
Rupees Rupees
24 Deferred taxation
Accelerated tax depreciation 139,502,781 166,207,115
Tax Credits / losses (195,666,347) (202,767,243)
Surplus on revaluation of related assets 272,558,003 193,637,927
216,394,437 157,077,799
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25 Share capital

2016 2015
Number Number

25.1 Authorized share capital

70,000,000 70,000,000  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each

25.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

873,180 873,180 Shares allotted on reorganization of
Kohinoor Industries Limited of
Rs.10/- each
125,008 125,008 Shares issued for cash of Rs. 10 each
2,005,959 2,005,959 Shares issued as fully paid bonus shares
of Rs. 10/- each
7,905,650 7,905,650 Right shares of Rs. 10/- each
10,909,797 10,909,797

26 Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment - net of tax

Land
Buildings
Plant and machinery

Less: Accumulated incremental depreciation

Less: Deferred tax liability

Opening balance
Addition during the year
Tax on Incremental depreciation for the year

Jauaharabad Sugar Mills Limited
Annual Report 2015-16

2016
Rupees

700,000,000

8,731,800

1,250,080
20,059,590

79,056,500
109,097,970

2016
Rupees

816,219,690
100,592,998
855,042,404

1,771,855,002

(133,061,493)
1,638,793,599

193,637,927
90,761,536
11,841,460

272,558,003

1,366,235,596

2015
Rupees

700,000,000

8,731,800

1,250,080
20,059,590

79,056,500
109,097,970

2015
Rupees

675,381,006
78,355,288
584,500,964
1,338,237,258
(94,863,234)
1,243,374,024

201,962,753

(8,324,826)
193,637,927
1,049,736,007
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27 Sales

28

Sugar - Local
Sugar - Export

Molasses
Mud
Bagasse

Less:
Federal excise duty
Sales tax

Cost of sales

Cost of sugarcane purchased and consumed
Salaries, wages and benefits
Chemicals and stores consumed
Packing material

Fuel

Power

Repairs and maintenance
Workers' welfare

Insurance

Depreciation

Other factory expenses

Opening work-in-process
Closing work-in-process

Cost of goods manufactured

Opening stock of finished goods
Closing stock of finished goods

28.1 This includes a sum of Rs. 763,840 (2015: Rs. 624,506) relating to retirement benefits.

Note

26.1

2016
Rupees

1,061,268,754
955,132,061
2,016,400,815
109,529,497
480,097
61,670,010
2,188,080,419

82,170,553
9,546,664
91,717,217
2,096,363,202

1,604,215,822
75,325,299
21,683,807
13,080,586
843,727
8,712,015
32,719,655
3,112,427
1,738,178
86,780,074
11,351,159
1,859,562,749

2,565,381
(1,999,238)
566,143
1,860,128,892
56,522,548
(28,433,222)
28,089,326
1,888,218,218

2015
Rupees

1,419,831,710

1,419,831,710
98,815,906

50,400,000
1,569,047,616

105,172,698
8,769,983
113,942,681
1,455,104,935

1,161,807,329
66,103,804
13,826,839
11,632,325
6,843,639
5,920,825
27,689,591
4,602,780
1,198,535
60,827,368
7,736,325
1,368,189,360

2,723,666
(2,565,381)
158,285
1,368,347,645
37,950,000
(56,522,548)
(18,572,548)
1,349,775,097
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2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupees
30.2 Auditors' remuneration
Annual audit fee 400,000 400,000
Half yearly review 63,000 50,000
Tax consultancy fee 1,006,250 315,000
1,469,250 765,000
30.3 The Company's directors or their spouses have no interest
in any donation.
31 Finance cost
Mark-up on long term finances 1,382,830 3,181,910
Mark-up on short term borrowings 45,749,231 47,519,084
Bank Commission on Exports 3,177,092 -
Bank charges 3,317,212 309,481
53,626,365 51,010,475
32 Other income
Balances written off 20,220,939 -
Mark-up written off - 24,741,377
Miscellaneous 2,759,011 4,275,211
Gain on Foreign Currency Transaction 299,278 -
Provision for workers' profit participation fund (4,317,691) (376,387)
18,961,537 28,640,201
33 Taxation
Current taxation
Current year 33.1 7,483,672 -
Deferred tax (31,444,898) 2,030,708
(23,961,226) 2,030,708

33.1 Current tax expense represents the income tax liability on export of sugar which fall under final tax regime. Whereas
the tax calculated as per section 113 has been adjusted against tax credits allowed under section 65-B.

33.2 The numerical reconciliation between the average tax rate and the applicable tax rate has not been presented in these
financial statements, as the total income of the Company falls under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
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29

30

Note

Distribution cost

Salaries, wages and benefits 29.1
Commission

Communication

Vehicles running and maintenance

General charges

29.1 This includes a sum of Rs. 46,988 (2015: Rs. 29,600)
relating to retirement benefits.

Administrative expenses

Salaries, wages and other benefits 30.1
Staff welfare

Legal and professional charges

Rent, rate and taxes

Fuel and power

Vehicles running and maintenance

Travelling and conveyance

Printing and stationery

Telecommunication

Repair and maintenance

Postage and telegrams

Advertisement

Auditors' remuneration 30.2
Charity and donations 30.3
Depreciation 5.1.1
Insurance

Miscellaneous

Jauaharabad Sugar Mills Limited
Annual Report 2015-16

2016
Rupees

5,164,915
1,711,720
142,398
167,290
1,817,064
9,003,387

59,072,803
2,426,117
4,412,168
2,972,283

890,774
1,985,550
1,071,462

792,107

441,979

94,785

154,003

107,550
1,469,250

444,500
1,771,022
2,464,208

1,870,088
82,440,649

30.1 This includes a sum of Rs. 540,366 (2015: 429,460) relating to retirement benefits.

2015
Rupees

4,513,130
2,062,460
108,556
321,200
543,807
7,549,153

47,120,571
1,954,607
4,844,787
3,967,648

993,825
2,109,005
713,636
580,303
413,496
70,917
146,259
112,780
765,000
170,000
1,241,375
1,129,769

1,925,071
68,259,049
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2016 2015
Rupees Rupees
34 Earning per share
34.1 Earning per share - basic
Profit after taxation Rupees 105,997,346 5,120,654
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Number 10,909,797 10,909,797
Earning per share - basic Rupees 9.72 0.47

34.2 Earning per share - diluted
There is no dilution effect on the basic earning per share as the Company has no such commitments.

35 Remuneration of Chief Executive, Director and Executives

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the year for remuneration, including certain benefits, to the
Chief Executive, full time working directors and executives of the Company is as follows:

Chairman Chief Executive Executive Directors Non Executive Directors Executives
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Managerial
remuneration - - - - - - - - 19,025,940 8,941,584
Utilities
19,025,940 8,941,584
Number of
key executives /
non executives 1 1 *1 *1 3 3 2 2 13 6

* The Chief executive holds 5,000 shares of the Company.
35.1 Executives are employees whose basic salaries exceed Rs. 500,000 in a financial year.

35.2 The Chief Executive and Directors have voluntarily forgone their remuneration and allowances since last year
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36

37.

Operating segments

36.1 These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable segment.

36.2 Revenue from sale of sugar represents 92.27 % (2015 : 90.49 %) of the total revenue of the Company.

36.3 54.44% (2015: 100 %) sales of the Company relates to customers in Pakistan.

36.4 All non-current assets of the Company as at September 30, 2016 are located in Pakistan.

Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets

Non-interest bearing

Long term deposits

Trade debts
Prepayments and
other receivables

Cash and bank balances

Maturity up
to one year

206,739,717
19,538,233
226,277,950

Maturity after
one year up
to five years

395,951

395,951

Maturity
after five
years

2016
Rupees

395,951

206,739,717
19,538,233

226,673,901

2015
Rupees

453,811
116,517,826

22,872,372
34,262,761
174,106,770
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Financial liabilities

Effective ~ Maturity up  Maturity after Maturity 2016 2015
yield/  tooneyear  oneyearup after five Rupees Rupees
mark up to five years years
rate
Interest bearing
Balance sheet items
Long term finances 7.48% to 4,541,040 32,644,519 - 37,185,559 26,173,872
9.01%
Short term borrowings - - - - 197,407,861
Loan from sponsors - - - - -
Non - interest bearing
Long term advances - |1 115,000,000 - 115,000,000 115,000,000
Other liabilities - 1,309,000 - 1,309,000 1,309,000
Trade and other payables 209,348,024 - - 209,348,024 261,870,602
Accrued mark-up 475,333 - - 475,333 12,916,959
214,364,397 | 148,953,519 - 363,317,916 614,678,294
Off balance sheets items
Performance Bonds - - - - 3,855,000
Federal Excise Duty 58,880,664 - - 58,880,664 58,880,664
Income Tax 197,075,000 - - 197,075,000 197,075,000
Capital expenditure 67,295,967 - - 67,295,967 14,360,000
Alternate corporate Tax 50,262,000 - - 50,262,000 -
Minimum Tax 6,590,000 - - 6,590,000 -
Federal Excise Duty/Sales Tax 11,720,000 - - 11,720,000 -
391,823,631 - - 391,823,631 274,170,664
606,188,028 | 148,953,519 - 755,141,547 388,848,958

The Company has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- Credit risk

- Liquidity risk

- Market risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Company’s risk management
framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.

Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter parties fail completely to
performas contracted.
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Credit risk from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and deposits with banks and financial institution,
as well as credit exposures to customers, including trade receivables and committed transactions. Out of total financial assets
of Rs. 226.673 million (2015: Rs. 174.106 million), the financial assets that are subject to credit risk amounted to
Rs. 207.135million (2015: Rs.139.390 million).

For trade receivables, internal risk assessment process determines the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its
financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal and external ratings in
accordance with the limits set by the management. The utilization of credit limit is regularly monitored. Accordingly, the credit
risk is minimal and the company also believes thatitis not exposed to major concentration of credit risk.

Concentration of the credit risk arises when the number of counter parties engaged in similar business activities or have
similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet contractual obligation to be similarly effected by the changes
in economic, political or other conditions. The company believes thatitis not exposed to major concentration risk.

The carrying amount of the financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure before any credit enhancements. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is:

2016 2015

Rupees Rupees

Long term deposits 395,951 453,811
Other receivables 206,739,717 22,872,372
Cash and bank balances 19,538,233 34,262,761
226,673,901 57,588,944

No provision for doubtful debt has been made during the year for local and foreign customers.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company's
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible to always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
due. The Company is not materially exposed to liquidity risk as substantially all obligations / commitments of the Company
are short term in nature and are restricted to the extent of available liquidity. In addition, the Company has obtained running
finance facilities from various commercial banks to meet any deficit, if required to meet the short term liquidity commitments.

Significant balances of financial assets and liabilities shall mature within twelve months as evident from the information
presented above.
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Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will effect the
Company'sincome or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.

Sensitivity analysis

At reporting date, if the PKR had strengthened by 10% against the US Dollar with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been lower by the amount shown below, mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gain on translation of
foreign currency bank account and foreign creditors.

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and assets / liabilities of the
Company.

Interest rate risk
Atthe reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's significant interest bearing financial instruments was as follows:

Effective interest rate Carrying amount
2016 2015 2016 2015
Percentage Percentage Rupees Rupees

Financial liabilities
Variable rate instruments
Long term finance 748%109.01%  8.51%1t0 11.71% 37,185,559 26,173,872
Loan from sponsors Nil Nil - 325,106,255
Short term borrowings 8.55%109.81%  10.73% 1o 12.93% - 197,407,861

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have decreased / (increased) loss for the year by the
amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2015.
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Profit and loss 100 bp

Increase Decrease
As at 30 September 2016
Cash flow sensitivity-Variable rate financial liabilities (471,321) 471,321
As at 30 September 2015
Cash flow sensitivity-Variable rate financial liabilities (507,010) 507,010

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on loss for the year and assets / liabilities of the
Company.

Fair value of financial instruments
The carrying values of the financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values. Fair value is the amount for which
an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

Capital risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it
can continue to provide adequate returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to maintain a strong capital
base to support the sustained development of its businesses. The Company manages its capital structure which comprises
capital and reserves by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to
shareholders, appropriation of amounts to capital reserves or/and issue new shares.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company manages its capital risk by monitoring its debt levels and liquid assets and
keeping in view future investment requirements and expectations of the shareholders. Debt is calculated as total borrowings
("long term loan" and "short term borrowings" as shown in the statement of financial position). Total capital comprises
shareholders' equity as shown in the balance sheet under "share capital and reserves".

The salient information relation to capital risk management of the Company as of Sep 30, 2016 and Sep 30, 2015 were as
follows:

2016 2015
Rupees Rupees
Total borrowings 37,185,559 223,581,733
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (19,538,233) (34,262,761)
Net debt 17,647,326 189,318,972
Total equity 2,648,451,656 1,978,479,101
Total capital 2,666,098,982 2.167,798,073
Gearing ratio 0.66% 8.73%



Jauaharabad Sugar Mills Limited
Annual Report 2015-16

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2016

2016 2015
Number Number
38 Number of employees

Average number of employees for the year 220 2392
Total number of employees at year end 219 291
39 Plant capacity and production Unit 2016 2015
Cane crushing M. Tons 340,519 252,995
Per day M. Tons 3,584 2,720
Production M. Tons 33,205 24,492
Per day 'V'-NTO”S 350 263
Days 0. 95 93

39.1  The maximum installed cane crushing capacity is 8,000 M.Tons per day.

40 Related party transactions / balances

The related parties comprise directors of the Gompany, key employees and provident fund trust. Details of transactions with
related parties, other than those which have been specially disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows:

2016 2015
Rupees Rupees

Related party balance Related party
Provident Fund Trust Associated undertakings 1,351,194 1,083,566
Loan from sponsors Sponsors 1,123,935,384 902,816,473

Short term loans from associates Associates 28,665,000 -
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2016 2015
Unit Rupees Rupees
41 Disclosure relating to Provident Fund Trust
The following information is based on un-audited
financial statements of Provident Fund Trust.
Size of fund - total assets Rupees 22,054,530 20,396,811
Cost of investments made Rupees 9,250,000 9,250,000
Percentage of investments made Percentage 41.94% 45.35%
Fair value of investment Rupees 20,535,000 17,640,000
The breakup of fair value of investments is as follows:
2016 2016 2015 2015
Rupees Percentage Rupees Percentage
Defense Saving Certificate 20,535,000 41.94% 17,640,000 45.35%
20,535,000 41.94% 17,640,000 45.35%

The investments of the Provident Fund Trust are in compliance with the provision of section 227 of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

42 Events after the statement of financial position date

There are no subsequent events occurring after the statement of financial position date which required disclosure in these
financial statements.

43 Date of authorization forissue
These financial statements were authorized forissue on December 28, 2016 by the Board of Directors of the Company.
44 General

441 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

Lahore %s Ul Hasan Amjad Bashir Hussain
December 28, 2016 Chief Executive Officer Director
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Sugar Mills Limited 109-A, Street No. 3, Cavalry Ground, Lahore - Cantt.

PROXY FORM

I/'We

of

being a member of JAUHARABAD SUGAR MILLS LIMITED hereby appoint

Name (Folio/CDC A/C No. if Member)
of

or failing him / her
Name (Folio/CDC A/C No. if Member)

of

as my/our proxy to attend, speak and vote for and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to
be held at its Registered Office, 109-A, Street No. 3, Cavalry Ground, Lahore - Cantt., on Tuesday, January 31,2017
at 11:30 AM and any adjournment thereof:

As witnessed given under my/our hand(s) day of January, 2017.

1. Witness:

Signature
N Affix Revenue

ame Stamp of Rs. 5/-
CNIC
Address
2. Witness: SIGNATURE OF MEMBER /

ATTORNEY
Signature
Name
SHARES HELD :
CNIC
Address
Folio No. CDC Account No.
Participant Account
ID No.
Notes: CNICNo. [ [ [ [[[[[TTTTTTT]]
1. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company's Registered Office, not less than 48

hours before the time for holding the meeting and must be duly stamped, signed and witnessed.

2. CDC Shareholders, entitled to attend, speak and vote at this meeting, must bring with them their
Computerized National Identity Cards (CNIC) /Passports in original to prove his/her identity, and in case
of Proxy, must enclose an attested copy of his/her CNIC or Passport.

3 In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature
ofthe nominee should be attached with the proxy form.
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